Minutes of the Livingston Parish Council Livingston, Louisiana March 14, 2019

The Livingston Parish Council met in regular session duly called, advertised, and convened at its regular meeting place, the Parish Council Chambers, Governmental Building, 20355 Government Boulevard, Livingston, Louisiana, on Thursday, March 14, 2019, at the hour of six-thirty (6:30) p.m. with the following Livingston Parish Council members present:

John Wascom Tracy Girlinghouse

Garry "Frog" Talbert R.C. "Bubba" Harris Tab Lobell Maurice "Scooter" Keen Jeff Averett Shane Mack

Absent: Jeff Ard

Also present: Layton Ricks, Parish President

Christopher Moody, Parish Legal Counsel

The chair asked the public to please mute or turn off their cell phones.

The chair announced that Public Input would be accepted from any member of the audience wishing to address an agenda item.

The chair addressed agenda item 7, "Presentations:". Having no Presentations, the chair moved to agenda item number 8 a and b:

- a. February 28, 2019 Juban Crossing Community Development District
- b. February 28, 2019 regular meeting of the Council

LPR NO. 19-073

MOTION was made by John Wascom and duly seconded by R.C. "Bubba" Harris to dispense with the reading of the minutes dated February 28, 2019 Juban Crossing Community Development District and the February 28, 2019 of the regular meeting of the Livingston Parish Council and adopt as written.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. HARRIS, MR. AVERETT, MR. LOBELL, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE,

MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. TALBERT

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item(s) 9, "Parish President's Report". Having no report, the chair moved to agenda item 10a, "Public Hearing and Adoption of L.P. Ordinance No. 19–06, Servitude Revocation: Melissa Martin Clark/South Frost Road".

The chair opened the Public Hearing and called upon the Council clerk to read the proposed ordinance by title.

The chair requested if anyone had any public input. Having none, the chair closed the Public Hearing. The co-chair advised that this agenda item would be addressed under the next item.

The chair addressed agenda item 11:

"Re-Introduction of Ordinance:

Melissa Martin Clark

L & L Land Surveying

South Frost Road Section 20, T8S R5E Council District 8

The chair requested the Council clerk to read the ordinance by title. The Council clerk questioned Mr. Moody, Parish Legal Counsel, if they would be able to retain the ordinance number that had been previously assigned to this ordinance that was being re-introduced. Mr. Moody agreed.

The following ordinance was introduced in proper written form and read by title, to wit:

L.P. ORDINANCE NO. 19-06

AN ORDINANCE REVOKING A CERTAIN 60' PRIVATE ALL PURPOSE SERVITUDE, LOCATED IN SECTION 20, T7S-R3E, GREENSBURG LAND DISTRICT, LIVINGSTON PARISH, LOUISIANA, IN FAVOR OF THE LAND OWNER, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN THE ATTACHED SURVEY:

LPR NO. 19-074

MOTION was offered by Tracy Girlinghouse and duly seconded by Jeff Averett to publish the ordinance by title in the Official Journal in accordance with the legal mandates and set a Public Hearing for Thursday, March 28, 2019 at the hour of six-thirty (6:30) p.m. at the Parish Council Chambers in the Governmental Building located at 20355 Government Boulevard, Livingston, Louisiana, at which time comments will be received on the proposed ordinance prior to a Council vote.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. HARRIS, MR. AVERETT, MR. LOBELL, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE,

MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. TALBERT

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item number 12, "Public Hearing and Adoption of L.P. Ordinance No. 19-07, An ordinance amending and clarifying the boundaries of Mosquito Abatement District Two and Three by amending L.P. No. 18-15 adopted on April 26, 2018".

The chair opened the Public Hearing and called upon the Council clerk to read the proposed ordinance by title.

The chair requested if anyone had any public input. Having none, the chair closed the Public Hearing called for the vote.

LPR NO. 19-075

The following ordinance which was previously introduced in written form required for adoption at a regular meeting of the Livingston Parish Council on February 28, 2019, a summary thereof having been published in the Official Journal together with a notice of public hearing which was held in accordance with said public notice, was brought up for final passage on March 14, 2019 on Motion of Garry "Frog" Talbert and seconded by Maurice "Scooter" Keen:

L.P. ORDINANCE 19-07

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND CLARIFYING THE BOUNDARIES OF MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT TWO AND THREE OF THE PARISH OF LIVINGSTON, STATE OF LOUISIANA AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER MATTERS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH.

33:9039.14; AND FURTHER PROVIDING FOR OTHER RELATED MATTERS.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. HARRIS, MR. AVERETT, MR. LOBELL, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE,

MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. TALBERT

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

And the ordinance was declared adopted on the 14th day of March 2019.

(The above and foregoing ordinance, upon final approval by the President, or the Council in case of veto by the President, shall be published in full in the Official Journal by the Clerk of the Council within fifteen (15) days of its adoption and shall be recorded in full in the Livingston Parish Council Ordinance Book No. 4).

The chair addressed agenda item 13, "Planning Commission Recommendations", and called upon Mr. Sam Digirolamo.

Mr. Digirolamo addressed agenda item 13a," Old River Townhomes, Centerline Engineering, Preliminary Site Plan, Old River Road, Section 60, T6S R2E, Council District 4" and reported that it was the recommendation of the Planning Commission to approve the preliminary site plan for Old River Townhomes contingent on Yukon Road being brought up to Parish standards or a driveway being built for the development.

Councilman John Wascom questioned if there was anyone present in the audience that could speak for the developer on this agenda item? Councilman Wascom advised that he knew that there were some unanswered questions regarding this development.

Mr. Bo James Booty, Professional Engineer with Centerline Engineering and Land Surveying, LLC stepped up to the lectern and addressed the Councilmembers identifying himself to speak on behalf of the owner of the development being addressed. Councilman Wascom advised that he had a couple of questions stemming from phone calls that he had received regarding this development. He requested if a decision had been made by the developer on the criteria set by the Planning Commission's approval if they would be bringing Yukon Road up to Parish standards or if they would be turning the driveway around and bringing it in from a different road?

Mr. Booty explained that a couple of layouts had been done to determine what would be the most feasible. He further explained that they were currently obtaining pricing to see what would be most feasible for the developer. The developer is aware that either Yukon has to be brought up to Parish standards or a private separate drive will have to be added to the townhomes for the project's acceptance. The two (2) options would be coming off of Yukon or Old River Road. Mr. Wascom explained that before a vote could be made, he would like to know what would be decided on. He questioned Mr. Digirolamo if this could be run back through Planning and then sent back to the Council once a decision had been made. Mr. Booty was asked and concurred that, depending on how the numbers came back on each plan, determination would be made if the project would still be viable.

Councilman Garry "Frog" Talbert questioned if Yukon Road was a parish road to which Mr. Digirolamo acknowledged that it was indeed a parish road. Mr. Talbert questioned if a traffic impact study could be done. Mr. Digirolamo advised that the State would probably be looking at this, to which Mr. Talbert questioned under the new state guidelines, since a parish road was

located there, could he even obtain access off of a state highway? The chair allowed Mr. Digirolamo to answer Mr. Talbert's many other questions.

Councilman Talbert asked Mr. Moody if the Planning Commission had the authority to ask the developer to base the approval of their development upon the developer bringing a parish-owned and maintained road up to parish standards? Mr. Moody indicated that issue had been brought up and addressed at the Planning Commission's meeting.

Mr. Moody offered that if it was for valid safety reasons, you can control how many entrances that they have on to a parish road. In this instance, it was determined to be a safety concern because there would be as many as fifteen (15) cars that would be backing out onto the road and that's why they wanted to hold up the development. He further advised that the Planning Commission could not make the developer bring the road up to parish standards, but it was a sort of trade off, making the road safer for the added safety concerns, thereby holding out their permission to have that many entrances.

Councilman Shane Mack discussed the importance of the submission of the preliminary plat to be the original intention of the project. He agreed that the project should be sent back to the Planning Commission to make certain and guarantee safe entrance and exit from the development.

Mr. Booty advised that the it was the developer's intention to do the development as it was laid out in front of them with the driveways on Yukon. They were told at the Planning Commission of the mandate of agreeing to one of the Planning Commission's stipulations to be approved and their client was agreeable to be able to keep the process of the development moving.

Public Input: Karmen Doiron, resident on Old River Road: has traffic concerns

The chair allowed a lengthy open discussion.

Mr. Booty advised that the drawing that the Council had before them was submitted to the Department of Transportation and Development as a courtesy, as the developer knew that their approval would be needed later as Yukon Road was located within a mile of a state road, plus they had two (2) driveways. He advised that from their preliminary conversations with the Department of Transportation and Development, there were not issues at this time.

Councilman Tracy Girlinghouse stated that he would like to know exactly what the Council was voting on. He further stated that he wanted to know which entrance, which way, and while not wanting to hold up the development, he was in agreement with the other members of the Council and wished to be able to see exactly what would be done before they approved it.

LPR NO. 19-076

MOTION was made by John Wascom and duly seconded by Maurice "Scooter" Keen to send the preliminary site plan for Old River Townhomes back to the Livingston Parish Planning Commission for their review of an amended preliminary site plan that will indicate the placement of where the entrance to the road will be in this development, located on Old River Road, Section 60, T6S R2E, in Council District 4.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. HARRIS, MR. AVERETT, MR. LOBELL, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE,

MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. TALBERT

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

Mr. Digirolamo addressed agenda item 13b, "Livingston Farms, Subdivision without Improvements, Clyde Blount Road, Section 7&18, T7S R5E, Council District 8" and advised that it was the recommendation of the Livingston Parish Planning Commission to approve the subdivision without improvements for Livingston Farms contingent on the drainage being addressed. He explained that this meant the engineer representing Livingston Farms will present something to our Parish engineer, and at that time, the Parish Review Engineer will decide if a drainage impact study will be necessary. Mr. Digirolamo concurred this with Ms. Morgan Sanchez, representing on behalf of Forte and Tablada, Parish Review Engineer.

Councilman Garry "Frog" Talbert questioned if there was a possibility that a drainage impact study might not be done? Mr. Digirolamo requested that Morgan Sanchez, representative for the Parish Review Engineer, come from the audience and address Councilman Talbert's questions.

Ms. Morgan Sanchez, of Forte and Tablada, representing as Parish Review Engineer, informed the Councilmembers that there was a chance that a full drainage impact study might not be required. She stated that a letter was originally submitted for an exception, she continued and explained the development's increase estimation, and that the Review Engineer's recommendation had been to not to accept it, needing more information from the development before making decisions.

The chair questioned why a gravity drainage study was not being performed? Ms. Sanchez advised that if that was the Council's wishes, then they could request that. She explained the differences of being a subdivision with and without improvements. The chair called upon Councilman Tab Lobell as this agenda item was located in his Council district.

Councilman Lobell advised that there were already drainage issues in this area. He agreed with the chairman and stated that a gravity drainage impact study would be good to have in place.

Councilman Talbert reminded the Councilmembers of the amendments made to a previous ordinance that they had adopted with respect to the exception that they are utilizing, when the Council amended the ordinance for Submittals. He continued with a very lengthy explanation of the intent of the amendments to the ordinance and had several questions.

Councilman Jeff Averett wished to comment on his historical knowledge of the condition of the property.

The chair allowed a very lengthy open discussion.

Public input: Ralph Burgess, Civil Design and Construction, Inc.:

Engineer for the project and surveyor of record, wished to address the Councilmembers and explained this project development's

unique situation

The chair allowed the Councilmembers to ask Mr. Burgess questions in an open forum.

MOTION was made by Tab Lobell and duly seconded by R.C. "Bubba" Harris to approve the preliminary site plan for Livingston Farms based on the Review Engineer's recommendation if a gravity drainage study is needed or not.

The chair called upon Ms. Morgan Sanchez in the audience for further clarification of what the resolution should entail to which she obliged as follows.

LPR NO. 19-077

MOTION was made by Tab Lobell and duly seconded by R.C. "Bubba" Harris to approve the preliminary site plan for Livingston Farms (Subdivision without Improvements), contingent upon the drainage issues being worked out to the satisfaction of the Livingston Parish Planning Department and Parish Review Engineer, located on Clyde Blount Road, Section(s) 7 and 18, T7S R3E, in Council District 8.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. HARRIS, MR. AVERETT, MR. LOBELL, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE,

MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. TALBERT

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

Mr. Digirolamo addressed agenda item 13c, "Eagle's Nest Townhomes, Preliminary Site Plan, LA Highway 16, Section 42, T7S R3E" and advised that it was the recommendation of the Livingston Parish Planning Department to approve the preliminary site plan for Eagle's Nest Townhomes.

The chair asked if there was any discussion from the audience, having none, he requested if the Councilmembers had any input on this item.

Councilman Garry "Frog" Talbert advised that he was not crazy about this item, but it met the ordinance and they would be required to do a twenty-five (25) year drainage requirement. He answered Councilman Maurice "Scooter" Keen's question on the location of the property and the chair asked if Councilman Talbert would like to make the motion to which he agreed.

LPR NO. 19-078

MOTION was made by Garry "Frog" Talbert and duly seconded by Maurice "Scooter" Keen to accept the recommendation of the Livingston Parish Planning Commission and <u>approve</u> the preliminary site plan for Eagle's Nest Townhomes located on Louisiana Highway 16, Section 42, T6S R3E, in Council District 2.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. HARRIS, MR. AVERETT, MR. LOBELL, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE,

MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. TALBERT

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

Mr. Digirolamo addressed agenda item 13d, "Hobby Lobby, Preliminary Site Plan, Cassle Road, Section 4,T7S R3E, Council District 7" and advised that it was the recommendation of the Livingston Parish Planning Commission "to approve the preliminary site plan for Hobby Lobby with a waiver on the building line setback and contingent on the Fire Department being ok with the hydrant placement". Mr. Digirolamo explained that the waiver was needed because the building was set right up against the property line. He advised that company owned both properties. Councilman Garry "Frog" Talbert asked if this was a case where they would be using a common wall at later date on the next building? Mr. Digirolamo advised that he had not been told that, but he thought that might be the case. Councilman Maurice "Scooter" Keen questioned where it was located. Multiple sources advised him where this business would be located. Councilman Talbert questioned if anyone had considered adjusting our ordinances that would address "big box" stores the allowance to do this, so a waiver would not be needed? Ms. Morgan Sanchez, representing for the Parish Review Engineer answered from her seat in the audience and was not audible. Councilman Talbert addressed Mr. Chad Bacas of Forte and Tablade in the audience, and questioned who owned the property? Mr. Bacas advised that he thought that it all belonged to Creekstone and that this situation did not happen often. Councilman Tracy Girlinghouse questioned the offset. Councilman Talbert answered and provided his opinions.

Councilman Girlinghouse queried Mr. Gerald Burns, member of the Planning Commission and resident/property owner on Juban Road close to the property in question, what his opinion was on this agenda item. Upon Mr. Burns giving his favorable consent from the audience (unaudible), the chair called for a motion.

LPR NO. 19-079

MOTION was made by Tracy Girlinghouse and duly seconded by R.C. "Bubba" Harris to accept the recommendation of the Livingston Parish Planning Commission and <u>approve the preliminary site plan for Hobby Lobby with a waiver on the building line setback and contingent on the Fire Department being okay with hydrant placement, being located on Cassle Road, Section 4, T7S R3E, in Council District 7.</u>

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. HARRIS, MR. AVERETT, MR. LOBELL, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE,

MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. TALBERT

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair thanked Mr. Digirolamo for his detailed explanation and hard work regarding the Planning Commission agenda items. He also commended Ms. Morgan Sanchez for all of her efforts as well, and noted the Councilmembers' appreciation and need for their input on the recommendations made by the Livingston Parish Planning Commission.

The chair addressed agenda item 14, "Set speed limit on Hartman Lane (west side) at 20 mph" and called upon Councilman Tracy Girlinghouse who explained the need and wishes of the residents of the area for the speed limit posting.

LPR NO. 19-080

MOTION was made by Tracy Girlinghouse and duly seconded by R.C. "Bubba" Harris to set the speed limit on Hartman Lane (being on the west side) at twenty miles per hour (20 mph), which is located outside of the city limits of the municipality of Walker, in Council District 7.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. HARRIS, MR. AVERETT, MR. LOBELL, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE,

MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. TALBERT

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item number 15, "Appoint members to the Master Plan Review Committee" and called upon Councilman Tracy Girlinghouse.

Councilman Girlinghouse advised that the Councilmembers had been reviewing the Parish's Master Plan. He discussed their intentions of implementing portions of it over a period of time, specifically as it relates to zoning. He stated it was now the time to assemble a committee in order to review the plan to discover what exists and what has been done by their predecessors, by updating what needs updating, basically reviewing the entire document to see what is pertinent and what is not, what needs to be changed, and then presented to the Council for discussion and

adoption. He stated that when talk of assembling the committee had fist begun, it started with five (5) members, then discussion had been to change it to seven (7) members. Now, determination had been established that it would be best to have nine (9) members on the committee, eight (8) being appointed by the Councilmembers and one (1) representation from the Parish President. Councilman Garry "Frog" Talbert had relinquished his District's committee appointment to allow for the Parish President to have that position availability and input.

Councilman Girlinghouse announced the following committee members to be appointed and serve on the Master Plan Review Committee:

- Eileen McCarroll Council District 9
- Dominick Abrams Council District 6
- Larry O'Neal Council District 8
- Kay Keen Council District 3
- Jeb Sadler Council District 5
- John Wascom Council District 4
- Kayla Lockhart Johnson Parish President
- Gerald Burns Council District 7
- Jeff Ard Council District 1

LPR NO. 19-081

MOTION was made by Tracy Girlinghouse and duly seconded by Garry "Frog" Talbert to form and create a committee to be known as the Master Plan Review Committee that will consist of nine (9) members, eight (8) members being appointed by the Livingston Parish Council, and one (1) member appointed by the Parish President as follows:

- Eileen McCarroll Council District 9
- Dominick Abrams Council District 6
- Larry O'Neal Council District 8
- Kay Keen Council District 3
- Jeb Sadler Council District 5
- John Wascom Council District 4
- Kayla Lockhart Johnson Parish President
- Gerald Burns Council District 7
- Jeff Ard Council District 1

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. HARRIS, MR. AVERETT, MR. LOBELL, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE,

MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. TALBERT

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item 16, "Request for a variance for a family member (non-descending/ascending) for a third address situated on 3.109-acre lot located at 22440 LA Highway 444, Livingston, LA in Council District 8" and called upon Councilman Tab Lobell.

Councilman Lobell explained that he had spoken with these family members, being an uncle and his two (2) nephews. He stated that there was plenty of property there, but it was not a "descending" heir, however, it was all family, and he would like to note that if it is not family residing on the property, then one (1) of them will have to go away. Councilman Lobell sternly advised these family members that this property could not be converted into rental property.

LPR NO. 19-082

MOTION was made by Tab Lobell and duly seconded by Jeff Averett to grant a variance for a family member (non-descending/ascending) for a third address situated on 3.109-acre lot located at 22440 LA Highway 444, Livingston, LA in Council District 8, contingent upon that family members only will reside at this address and it will never become a rental property.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. HARRIS, MR. AVERETT, MR. LOBELL, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE,

MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. TALBERT

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item number 17, "District Attorney Report(s):" and asked if the Parish Legal Counsel, Mr. Moody had anything to report. Mr. Moody advised that he had nothing to report at this time.

The chair moved on and addressed agenda item 18, "Committee Report(s):"

- a. Ordinance Committee Garry Talbert, Chair
 - i. <u>Introduction of Ordinance</u>: Amend Section 14.3-1, "Safety regulations", by revising file distribution specifications in the Livingston Parish Regulations Booklet, "Operations and Activities/Commercial Building/Hazardous Materials Operations" Section 2(a) "Requirements"

Councilman Talbert reported that the Ordinance Committee had met earlier that day and discussed a mandate where a set of plans is supposed to be submitted to Mr. Mark Harrell's office that really has not been enforced. After speaking with the Department Heads, a list of criteria was set that plans would need to be submitted in a PDF format, changing it from thirty (30) calendar days to two (2) calendar days, and it changes the business operation of days to final inspection. After the committee's discussion and Mr. Harrell's recommendations: Floor plan layouts shall include all windows and doors and sizes of each, FPC connection locations, all fire hydrant locations, sprinkler and riser room locations, and location of connections and providers of water, gas and electrical. This will be uploaded to a state website and all first responders will be able to access this in their time of need. He recommended that this ordinance be introduced at this time and called upon the Council clerk to read the proposed ordinance by title.

The following ordinance was introduced in proper written form and read by title, to wit:

L.P. ORDINANCE NO. 19-08

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 14.3, SECTION 14.3-1, "SAFETY REGULATIONS," TO INCLUDE REVISIONS TO THE LIVINGSTON PARISH REGULATIONS BOOKLET, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES IN AND FOR THE PARISH OF LIVINGSTON.

LPR NO. 19-083

MOTION was offered by Garry "Frog" Talbert and duly seconded by R.C. "Bubba" Harris to publish the ordinance by title in the Official Journal in accordance with the legal mandates and set a Public Hearing for Thursday, March 28, 2019 at the hour of sixthirty (6:30) p.m. at the Parish Council Chambers in the Governmental Building located at 20355 Government Boulevard, Livingston, Louisiana, at which time comments will be received on the proposed ordinance prior to a Council vote.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. HARRIS, MR. AVERETT, MR. LOBELL, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. TALBERT

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

The chair called upon Councilman Tracy Girlinghouse to report on the Finance Committee: Councilman Tracy Girlinghouse advised that the budget was pretty on par, as well as the intake of taxes. He indicated that there were a couple of items to note: the Parish wanted to go into a one-time landscape update for the courthouse, it would come from money appropriated from their funds and they wished to enter into a lawn maintenance contract. They were not satisfied with the contractor that they had currently. They also wished to address air conditioning repair in the jail itself: the original units were proprietary, and they wished to replace them with others that would be universal with a company that was local and had a very quick response time.

He also wished to remind everyone, as he felt that it was very noteworthy, whereby informing the public, that the expenses of the jail fall under the Parish and not the Sheriff's budget.

Councilman Tab Lobell wished to commend a Springfield native for closing out the recent LSU-Northwestern baseball game.

Councilman Tracy Girlinghouse also wished to give accolades to the Walker High School boys' basketball team in their endeavors in the state championship with Thibodaux.

Councilman John Wascom expressed his pride when the Denham Springs girls' basketball team beat Walker and then went on to the state championship and jokingly chided former mayor of Walker, Travis Clark, who was in attendance in the audience.

Councilman Garry "Frog" Talbert wished to inform the public of the upcoming Mosquito Abatement election on May the 4th and encouraged the electorate of that district, no matter what position may be, for or against, that everyone should exercise their right to vote and make it to the polls.

Having no further business, a motion to adjourn was requested until the next regular meeting scheduled on Thursday, March 28, 2019, at the hour of six-thirty (6:30) p.m. in Livingston, Louisiana.

LPR NO. 19-084

MOTION was offered by R.C. "Bubba" Harris and duly seconded by Garry "Frog" Talbert to adjourn the March 14, 2019 regular meeting of the Livingston Parish Council.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR.

TALBERT, MR. HARRIS, MR. AVERETT, MR. LOBELL

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. ARD

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

/s/ Sandy C. Teal

<u>/s/ Shane Mack</u>

Sandy C. Teal, Council Clerk

Shane Mack, Council Chairman